CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY Needs Assessment

Prepared by:

Office of Institutional Planning & Analysis
Oakland Community College

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
Description of Proposed Program	1
Description of Occupation	2
Relation of Proposed Program to College Mission	3
METHODOLOGY	4
Methods of Data Collection	4
Methods of Data Analysis	4
ANALYSIS	5
Employment .	5
Employment Benefits	8
Career Preparation	9
SUMMARY	12
Appendix A	13
Appendix B	17
References	

CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY NEEDS ASSESSMENT

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this report is to present information to assist in evaluating the need for a Civil Engineering Technology program at Oakland Community College. Initiated by William J. O'Mahoney, Dean of Academic Services, Auburn Hills, and continued by Bill Rose, Dean of Academic Services, Auburn Hills, this assessment involved a literature review including information from the Michigan Occupational Information System (MOIS), an examination of related academic programs in institutions of higher education within Michigan and a survey of seventy five local engineering firms, the most common employers of civil engineering technologists.

Description of Proposed Program

The Civil Engineering Technology Program would provide the general, supportive, and technical education necessary for the student who completes the program to obtain a technician position in one of the following fields of civil engineering:

- -Design of highways and other public works
- -Construction of highways and other public works
- -Surveying of highways and other public works
- -Traffic and transportation engineering
- -Environmental and solid waste planning, design, and construction
- -Traffic signal design, construction, and maintenance

The proposed program, resulting in an associates degree in applied science-civil engineering technology, would consist of 28 credit hours of major requirements, 20 credit hours of supportive courses, and 16 credit hours of general education courses.

The major requirements for the Program would include:

- CET 100 (3) Property of Engineering Materials
- CET 110 (3) Engineering Plans & Specifications
- CET 120 (4) Surveying for Construction
- CET 130 (3) Nature of Soils
- CET 140 (4) Highway Design
- CET 150 (3) Bituminous and Concrete Materials
- CET 160 (3) Highway and Structure Maintenance
- CET 170 (4) Route Surveying
- CET 180 (4) Construction Safety and Traffic Maintenance
- CET 190 (3) Traffic Flow and Data
- CET 200 (4) Traffic Signal Control

CET 210 (4) Highway and Construction Drainage

CET 220 (3) Environmental Testing and Solid Waste

The supportive courses would include:

MAT 115 (4) Intermediate Algebra

MAT 156 (3) Trigonometry

DPR 103 (4) Principles of Computer Information Process DRT 111 (3) Introduction to Technical Drawing

CAD 110 (3) Introduction to Computer Aided Design (Design Track)

CAD 120 (3) Computer Aided Design Applications I (Design Track)

PHY 161 (4) College Physics I

QAT 100 (3) Total Quality Control (Inspection Track) QAT 101 (3) Principles of Quality Assurance (Inspection Track)

ELT 121 (3) Basic Electricity I (Signal Track)

ELT 124 (3) Basic Electricity II (Signal Track)

The general education courses would include:

(3) Communications/English

(3) Fine Arts/Humanities

(3) Mathematics/Science (fulfilled above)

(3) Social Science

(3) American Government (POL 151)

(3) Written Communication

(1) Physical Education

Each of the Civil Engineering Technology (CET) courses would be new to the College upon approval of the Program. The other courses are already in existence and being offered at Oakland Community College.

The Accreditation Board for Engineering and Technology, Inc. has established criteria for accrediting programs in Engineering Technology. The relevant criteria have been included in the proposed Civil Engineering Technology courses.

Description of Occupation

Civil engineer technologists work under the direction of civil engineers and physical scientists. They work on the design and construction of roads, airports, tunnels, bridges, water supply systems, sewage systems and buildings. Technicians must apply theories and principles of civil engineering in planning, designing and overseeing the construction and maintenance of structures and facilities. According to MOIS civil engineering technologist's responsibilities include the following:

- Overseeing production orders and assisting in the preparation of work schedules.
- 2. Developing cost estimates of work to be completed.
- 3. Setting up and maintaining monitoring equipment to obtain samples, measurements and other data.
- 4. Conducting preliminary inspections to assure standards are being met.
- Performing various other duties such as filing plans and prints, answering questions and directing appropriate work to operators and other workers.

Other job titles for people trained in civil engineering technology include:

- -Chemical Technician
- -Drafter
- -Electrical/Electronics Technician
- -Industrial Engineering Technician
- -Mechanical Engineering Technician
- -Metallurgical Technician
- -Petroleum Technician
- -Robotics Technician

Calculus-based coursework and further formal education is usually required in order for a civil engineer technician to advance to a position as a civil engineer. Degree programs for civil engineer technicians require technical math and science courses which are not calculus-based.

Relation of Proposed Program to College Mission

The proposed Civil Engineering Technology program relates to the College mission in that OCC will maintain a curriculum responsive to the changing educational needs of the residents of the district. The range of learning experiences provided will include theory, practical application and real life situation (Mission Goal C--Flexible Curriculum). OCC will continue to search for creative, innovative and, when appropriate, risk-taking strategies which will meet the needs of the ethnically, racially and economically diverse populations and institutions within OCC's urban, suburban and rural communities (Goal 2, Objective C--Program Development).

METHODOLOGY

Methods of Data Collection

An examination of the literature focused on two specific areas pertinent to civil engineering technology: first, industry needs and second, the job market. The literature review dealt primarily with civil engineering; however, it is most often the case that civil engineer technicians are hired by the same firms that employ civil engineers. Civil engineering technicians are also most often supervised by civil engineers.

Additional information subsequent to the literature review was warranted, to gather information about local area employer's hiring practices and needs for civil engineering technicians. A survey was designed and sent to seventy five (75) local engineering firms (see Appendix A) to assist in the civil engineering technology program assessment. These firms included government agencies, state and county office, as well as private engineering firms (see Appendix B). The survey addressed three areas:

- 1. Employment demands
- 2. Employment benefits
- 3. Career preparation

Survey questions concerning employment demand included inquiries about current employment of civil engineering technicians, and future employment needs, such as the need to retrain current employees, and the need to increase civil engineering technology staff. Survey questions concerning employment benefits included inquiries about salary levels, advancement opportunities, and other reasons for choosing civil engineering technology as a career. Survey questions focusing on career preparation included requests for identifying needed skills and credentials, comments on the adequacy of currently available training, and assurances about the availability of training at the engineering firm for potential OCC students.

Methods of Data Analysis

Seventy-six percent (57) of the surveyed engineering firms responded. Data were analyzed by means of frequency distributions and content analysis of narrative responses.

ANALYSIS

Employment

In 1985, there were approximately 2,550 civil engineer technicians employed in Michigan, most working in urban areas (MOIS). Projected growth in major regions of the state was ten to thirty percent within a ten year period. An annual average of 90 openings was expected with 60 due to replacement and 30 due to natural growth. Table 1 (below) represents employment projections in fourteen major geographic regions in Michigan by 1995.

TABLE 1
MICHIGAN EMPLOYMENT OUTLOOK FOR
CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNICIANS
(1985-1995)

REGION	umber Employed 1985	Percent Growth 1995
Detroit Metro	1,640	10.0
Kent County	50	10.5
Flint	250	29.3
Lansing	125	10.4
Washtenaw Area	125	12.6
Saginaw Bay, Mid	land 75	8.7
Kalamazoo	25	39.9
Upper Peninsula	25	25.7
Jackson	50	10.2
Berrien-Cass-Van	Buren 25	18.4
Ottawa-Allegan	25	20.0
Battle Creek	25	14.0
N.W. Lower Penins	sula 25	30.6
Muskegon	25	25.0

SOURCE: MOIS transcript #403

Of the engineering firms surveyed, over 67% answered that they currently employ civil engineering technicians. However, as shown in Table 2 (below), almost 69% indicated that they were not currently hiring new civil engineering technicians, but over 72% anticipated hiring additional civil engineering technicians between 1991 and 1995. As shown in Table 3 (below) over 50% of the respondents who said that they would be hiring more civil engineering technicians in the future, said that their most likely reason for doing so would be because of an increased volume of business. Over 73% of respondents reported that they believed there was a growing need for civil engineering technicians in the industry.

TABLE 2 PROJECTED HIRING OF CIVIL ENGINEER TECHNICIANS 1991-2001

FIRMS CURRENTLY HIRING CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNICIANS: 31.5% FIRMS NOT CURRENTLY HIRING CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNICIANS: 68.5%

HIRING ESTIMATES BETWEEN 1990-1995

NUMBER	PERCENT
NEEDED	OF FIRMS
•	
0	27.8
1	16.7
2	14.8
3	9.3
4	5.6
5	9.3
6	1.9
9	1.9
10	1.9
15	1.9
20	3.7
25 .	3.7
60	1.9
~ .	

TABLE 3 MOST COMMON REASONS CITED BY CIVIL ENGINEERING FIRMS FOR HIRING NEW CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNICIANS 1990-1995

Increased Volume of Business Expansion of Firm Retirement of Current Employees Other	Percent 51.3 23.1 20.5 5.1
	100.0%

Information available about the civil engineering industry focuses primarily on civil engineers. Since many firms that hire civil engineers also hire civil engineer technicians, the following information is relevant in focusing on the future of civil engineering technology as a career. According to employment statistics from the MOIS, in 1985 there were approximately 5,050

civil engineers employed in Michigan. They worked for highway and building construction firms, government agencies, consulting firms and manufacturing companies. Furthermore, employment for civil engineers in Michigan was expected to increase faster than the average for all occupations in the 1990s (MOIS 1989). Expected increases are based upon public concern for protection of the environment, redevelopment of urban areas and road work for new residential areas.

A growing market for civil engineers involves the problems of hazardous or toxic waste dumping and growing societal concern to correct the unsafe practices of the past. New federal regulations will require the use of highly trained specialists in this field especially as it relates to health and safety (Brown, 1989; Engineering News Record, 1988).

Infrastructure repair is another growing concern in many states. An Engineering News Record survey indicated that Michigan is ranked thirteenth out of twenty states with the largest road and bridge market in the United States (Hannan, 1990). There are also indications that major cities outside of Michigan will have an increased need for civil engineering technicians. Many cities on the East coast and Midwest need to repair or replace deteriorating roads, bridges and sewer/water lines (Ichniowski, 1990).

A weakened economy has affected the construction industry in the area of single-family housing. As a result, the industry is looking towards nonresidential markets in commercial and industrial construction. In addition, building construction by government and educational institutions is expected to increase (Hannan, 1990).

In the area of wastewater management, there is a projected ten billion dollars of work needed in several California cities within the next ten years (Civil Engineering, 1989). Other points of concern include the conservation of water and wastewater management in the desert Southwest. In the Detroit Metropolitan area, employers are hiring civil engineers to work in the area of environmental control which includes wastewater management.

The literature in all major journals reviewed suggest that there is a serious shortage of civil engineer technicians and civil engineers. Retraining in new technology is needed to combat a growing market dealing with hazardous waste and other environmental issues. In addition, there are not enough trained manpower to meet the demand for infrastructure repair as states seek government and local funding to start construction (Merwin, 1990).

A common theme cited in the literature is that professionals in the field of civil engineering are looking to develop new manpower sources, especially women and minorities, since white males are leaving the field. Women have been reluctant to enter the field due to a lack of mentors (Engineering News Record, 1988).

In addition, women perceive the field to be low tech, a perception that is also shared by the general public (Engineering News Record, 1988).

Minorities tend to associate construction work with common labor. However, as education levels increase, minorities are increasingly entering the more prestigious engineering fields (Engineering News Record, 1988). The National Action Council for Engineering (NACME), the American Consulting in Engineers Council (ACEC), the American Society of Civil Engineers' (ASCE) and the National Science Foundation (NSF) are actively encouraging minorities to enter the field by providing financial incentives to facilitate their education. Nevertheless, a Fall 1989 report from the Engineering Manpower Commission indicated that from 1988 to 1989, the total female undergraduate population in engineering had decreased, but the female population in graduate school programs had increased. The representation of Black undergraduates in engineering had increased by 712 by 1989 and Hispanics had increased by 557.

The shortage of manpower may also affect academia. An Engineering News Record study indicated that 22% of faculty in civil engineering are expected to retire within the next decade (Rubin, 1988). Decreased research funding offers little incentive for engineers to stay in academia. The shortage of teaching faculty could affect attempts to increase skilled manpower. However, a telephone poll of civil engineering departments of five major universities in Michigan indicated that recruitment of faculty has not been a major problem. Also, community colleges are more likely to employ part-time civil engineer practitioners which allow universities to concentrate their full-time faculty in the more specialized graduate and upper division courses.

Employment Benefits

According to MOIS, based on education, work experience and areas of specialization, civil engineer technicians, on a national level, earn an average annual salary of \$17,897 to \$34,742. There is a potential for advancement in the field with additional college education and work experience. The average annual salary for a Michigan graduate with an associate's degree is between \$9,360 and \$18,000 according to MOIS. In Oakland County, civil engineer technicians employed by the Government earn between \$16,205 and \$28,289 annually. In Michigan, civil engineer technicians are not required to be certified, but some employers may require certification in specialized areas. Employers may hire individuals with related backgrounds, but they prefer to hire graduates of a formal Civil Engineer Technician program (MOIS).

The survey of local engineering firms supports the MOIS information on salaries. Survey respondents provided information

regarding employment benefits, such as salary and advancement opportunities. The ranges in annual salaries that area engineering firms presently offer to civil engineering technicians are as follows:

Entry Level	LOW \$10,000	HIGH \$34,729
Upper Level	\$10,000	\$52,000

The salary range from entry level to upper level indicates that civil engineering technicians have much room for economic advancement within their field.

In the area of career advancement, many firms reported a variety of different job positions and titles that would be possible for an experienced civil engineering technician to advance to over time. These titles and positions included:

Registered surveyor	Assistant estimator
Program manager	Estimator
CADD supervisor	Chief estimator
Plant engineer	Draftsman in charge
Jr/Intermediate Engineer designer	Expeditor
Inspector	Office supervisor
Materials technician	Lead technician
Civil engineer assistant	Supervisor of field
Project Manager	Laboratory supervisor

Many firms also reported offering on the job training to their employees to help enable them to advance to such positions.

Over 76% of those firms that responded reported that it was not possible to advance to a position as a civil engineer without further coursework. It was generally agreed that a civil engineering technician would need to obtain a bachelors degree in civil engineering in order to advance to such a position. A civil engineering bachelors degree program would require calculus and math-based coursework that is not present in standard civil engineering technology programs.

Career Preparation

According to the literature, a total of six institutions of higher education in Michigan currently offer programs in civil engineering technology or civil technology. Each institution is listed below along with a brief description of their program.

· 1000年 1

Alpena Community College: Offers an Associate of Applied Science degree in Concrete Technology which covers aspects of concrete manufacturing and building construction. The degree requires 58 credit hours for completion. The College also offers an associate's for transfer in civil engineering.

Delta College: Offers a 42 credit hour certificate in Residential Construction geared toward the housing and business industry. With an additional 25 credit hours, a student can earn an Associate of Applied Science degree in this field.

Ferris State University: Offers an Associate of Applied Science degree in Construction Technology which includes road work, building construction, airport construction and railroads. The degree requires 99 quarter credit hours for completion.

Grand Rapids Junior College: Offers an Associate in Civil Engineering Technology for transfer and an Associate of Applied Science degree in Water Purification Technology. Water Purification Technology trains individuals to work with water quality and treatment. This degree requires 66 credit hours for completion.

Macomb Community College: Offers a 62 credit hour Associate in Applied Science degree and a 30 credit hour certificate in Civil Technology geared toward construction and water/waste water systems. In addition, MCC offers an Associate degree of Applied Science in Construction for mid-managers.

Michigan Technological University: Offers a 102 quarter credit hour program in Civil Engineering Technology for an Associate in Applied Science. This program provides training in surveying, drafting, soil technology, computer applications and construction.

Table 4 lists Michigan colleges and universities offering two year transfer degrees or advanced degrees (bachelor's, master's, doctorates), in civil engineering.

TABLE 4 MICHIGAN COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES OFFERING TWO YEAR TRANSFER DEGREE/ADVANCED DEGREE PROGRAMS IN CIVIL ENGINEERING*

Bay De Noc
Charles Stewart Mott
Detroit Business Inst.
Glen Oaks
Gogebic
Jackson
Kalamazoo Valley
Kellogg
Kirtland
Lake Michigan College
Lansing
Lawrence Tech. University
Madonna College
Michigan State University

Mid-Michigan
Montcalm
Muskegon
Northern Michigan University
Northwestern Michigan College
Saginaw Valley State University
Schoolcraft College
St. Clair County
Southwestern Michigan College
University of Detroit
University of Michigan
Washtenaw
Wayne State University

*Community College unless otherwise specified

In 1988, the Engineering News Record reported that recruitment of students into civil engineering programs was increasing at the college level. However, a September 1989 report in Chemical recruitment activity indicated that Engineering engineering programs was low compared to the previous year, but enrollments were expected to remain steady. However, when the major universities chairs of five Technological University, University of Detroit, Michigan State University, Wayne State University and the University Michigan-Ann Arbor) were contacted for information regarding their Civil Engineering programs, all five chairpersons indicated that traditionally, average enrollment in civil engineering was lower than any other engineering program. In addition, they indicated that placement rates for civil engineer graduates of their schools They also reported that graduates are more likely to be hired by local, state and federal governments, while fewer are hired by private engineering firms.

Some universities such as Lawrence Technological University and Michigan Technological University offer bachelor's degrees in Civil Engineering and Civil Engineering Technology. The objectives and course work associated with these programs are very different such that accreditation standards do not permit the exchange of courses between the two programs. The curriculum for civil engineering is calculus-based, while civil engineering technology courses are not. All five chairpersons contacted, indicated that they do not accept Civil Engineering Technology Associate degrees for transfer into their Civil Engineering program. However, they

do accept the current Oakland Community College pre-engineering course work for transfer into their Civil Engineering degree program.

Over 88% of survey respondents believed that there is a need for more training/associates degree programs in civil engineering technology. Over 43% of respondents said that they would be interested and willing to have an Oakland Community College student work as an intern at their firm during the student's college training, and a further 31% felt that they might be willing to have an intern under certain circumstances. Appendix B contains a complete list of the seventy five engineering firms surveyed, with notations made by firms willing to have an OCC student intern.

SUMMARY

Based on this assessment there appears to be evidence that supports the notion of future economic growth and productivity in the field of civil engineering. Demand in Michigan and other states primarily concerns the areas of road construction and repair, wastewater management, industrial construction hazardous waste disposal management. Employers currently report a manpower in civil engineers and technicians. Furthermore, as construction projects and federal dollars increase in the 1990s to address growing concerns over infrastructure repair and environmentally related issues, the shortage of trained technicians and engineers to fulfill the demand will continue to appear. From our survey, it seems that local area employers are optimistic of the growing future for civil engineering technicians. Further, there does seem to be a wide variety of advancement opportunities for civil engineering technicians, although becoming a civil engineer does require more formal education and a heavier emphasis on math related coursework.

Appendix A

Survey Cover Letter and Instrument

, r.g



DAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE

ORCHARD RIDGE CAMPUS • 27055 ORCHARD LAKE RD. • FARMINGTON HILLS, MICHIGAN 48018 • 313-471-7500

DATE

Dear SAMPLE:

The Office of Institutional Research at Oakland Community College is assessing the need for a proposed Civil Engineering Technology program. At this stage in the assessment process we need to ascertain current and future employment for Civil Engineering Technologists. As potential employers you can provide us with the insight that is needed to further develop this program.

Please take five minutes to complete the enclosed questionnaire and return it to us within seven days in the self-addressed, postage paid envelope which is provided. Your comments will help Oakland Community College in making decisions with regard to the establishment of this program. If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (313) 471-7746. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Martin A. Orlowski, Director Office of Institutional Research

MAO/pc Enclosure

OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE CIVIL ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY PROGRAM NEEDS ASSESSMENT SURVEY

Instructions: Please respond to each of the following questions based on your knowledge of the current and future status of Civil Engineering Technology in your firm. When finished, place the completed survey in the pre-addressed, postage-paid envelope and mail. Thank you for your help.

1.	How many Civil Engineering Technologists does your firm currently employ? Full time Part time
2.	Are you currently hiring more Civil Engineering Technologists? Yes No
3.	How many new Civil Engineering Technologists do you anticipate hiring between now and 1995?
4.	PLEASE RANK ORDER FROM 1 (MOST LIKELY REASON) TO 4 (LEAST LIKELY REASON) the following possible reasons for hiring new Civil Engineering Technologists in your firm within the next five years: Expansion of firm Increased volume of business Retirement of current Civil Engineering Technologists Other, please explain:
`,	
5 .	How would you rate Civil Engineering Technology as a career to enter currently? Excellent Good Fair Poor
6.	What percent of Civil Engineering Technologists that your firm currently employs will need formal (classroom) upgrading of their skills on an annual basis?
7.	Do you feel there is a growing need for Civil Engineering Technologists? Yes No
8.	What specific skills and /or prior-training do prospective Civil Engineering Technology employees need before being hired? (PLEASE CHECK ALL THAT APPLY) Drafting Surveying Graphics Technical writing Advanced mathematics, please explain: Computer training, please explain: Other, please explain:
9.	What is the annual Civil Engineering Technologist salary range at your firm? Entry level \$ to \$ Upper level \$ to \$

APPENDIX A

additiona	sible for Civil Engineering T al academic work and/or de _ Yes; please skip to ques _ No; please answer ques	egrees? tion 13	to a Civil Engineering position without
degrees	are necessary for a Civil I	Engineering Technologist	what additional academic work and/or to advance to a Civil Engineering position:
. Are Civi	I Engineering Technologist	positions available to per	rsons with disabilities?
	No, please explain: _		
. What cre	edentials are required by y No prior related work ex Prior related work exper Prior work experience as Associate's Degree in C	our firm for Civil Engineer perience or education ience s a Civil Engineering Tech civil Engineering Tech	pay
	Bachelors Degree, plea	ase list acceptable fields	3:
	Other, please explain:		
prepar	u feel that the new (non-ex red for the job? Almost always prepared Sometimes prepared Usually not prepared		ing Technologists you hire are adequately
. Is there	Yes	lege Civil Engineering Ted	chnology training programs?
their ac	ademic training? Yes No Uncertain, please exp	lain:	College student work as an intern during
	have follow-up questions a ber where you can be con	ifter reviewing your respo	nses, would you please provide your name an
	Firm:		· ·

The information you provided in this survey will help OCC determine the future of the Civil Engineering Technology program. Please place the completed survey in the pre-addressed, postage-paid envelope and drop it in the mail today. Thank you.

OCC, Office of Institutional Research, 27055 Orchard Lake Rd. Farmington Hills, MI 48334

Appendix B

List of Surveyed Engineering Firms

The manifest of the companies

CAN INC., CIVIL ENGINEER
CONSULTANTS
ATTENTION MANAGER
83 ALL ROAD
SULL 105
UTICA, MI 48087

MR. MIKE CLEAVER, PRES. PW & ASSOCIATES, INC. 31333 SOUTHFIELD ROAD BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009 MR. LOUIS ROSSETTI, PRES. ROSETTI ASSOCIATES, INC. 601 WASHINGTON BLVD. DETROIT, MI 48226

MR. LAWRENCE MARTIN MICHIGAN ROAD BUILDERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 610 OTTAWA P.O. BOX 13130 LANSING, MI 48901 MR. RICHARD A. PRISTER,
PRESIDENT
PRISTER & ASSOCIATES
25050 FORD ROAD
DEARBORN HEIGHTS, MI 48127

MR. ROBERT ROTH, PRES. ROTH & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 554 E. MAPLE ROAD SUITE 200 TROY, MI 48083

MR. JAMES G. MORRIS, PRES. MORRIS CO., J.G. 1852 WEST ROAD TRENTON, MI 48183 MR. ARTHUR CARMICHAEL
PRESIDENT
PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS, INC.
19450 HAGGERTY ROAD
LIVONIA, MI 48152

MR. DAVID RUBY RUBY & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 20245 W. TWELVE MILE RD. SOUTHFIELD, MI 48076

MR. STEVE SMITH
MULTIPLE DYNAMICS CORP.
29 SOUTHFIELD SUITE 103
SCOTHFIELD, MI 48076

MR. RICHARD GRAHAM, PRES. PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOC., INC. 2265 LIVERNOIS SUITE 900 TROY, MI 48083-1606 MR. DOUG KEATS STS CONSULTANTS LTD. 3340 W. TWELVE MILE RD. LANSING, MI 48906

MR. TOM MUNSELL, PRES. MUNSELL ASSOCIATES, INC. 17500 W. 8 MILE RD SUITE 6 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48075 * MR. ROBERT ANDREWS, PRES. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INDUSTRIES 24355 CAPITOL AVE. DETROIT, MI 48239 MR. JOHN SHEN, PRESIDENT SYJ ASSOCIATES, INC. 29433 SOUTHFIELD RD. SUITE 110 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48076

MR. JERRY NEYER, PRES. NTH CONSULTANTS, LTD. 65 CADILLAC SQUARE SUITE 2223 DETROIT, MI 48226

MR. THOMAS EURICH, PRES. RANDERS ENGINEERING, INC. 905 W. EISENHOWER CIR. #102 ANN ARBOR, MI 48103 MR. CHICK SETO, PRESIDENT SETO-TSANG ASSOCIATES WINDMILL POINTE OFF. PLAZA 2838 E. LONG LAKE SUITE 255 TROY, MI 48098

N RAYMOND EFGHEMIOU, ESIDENT O.E.M. ASSOCIATES, INC. 28700 RYAN ROAD WARREN, MI 48092 MR. DANIEL REDSTONE, PRES. REDSTONE ASSOCIATES, INC. 28425 W. EIGHT MILE RD. LIVONIA, MI 48152 MR. JAMES ELLIS SHAPACK, MCCOLLOUGH & FRANK, P.C. 525 N. WOODWARD AVE. SUITE 1000 BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI 48013-7193

^{*} Indicates firm willing to have an OCC student intern

MR. BRIAN PALMER, PRES. AMERIVEST CONSTRUCTION 3077 NORTHWESTERN HWY. SUITE 300 FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48018 MR. THOMAS P. BIASELL DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERV. CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS 31555 11 MILE RD. FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48018 MR. DON ALLES, PRES. ARCHITECTURAL-ENGINEER -ING SERVICES., INC. 17321 TELEGRPAH RD. SUTTE 103 DETROIT, MI 48219

MR. GEORGE ECKSTEIN, PRES. ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK., INC. 42800 GARFIELD ROAD MT. CLEMENS, MI 48044

MR. AL WILLIAMS METRO DISTRICT ENGINEER MICHIGAN DEPT. OF TRANSP. 18101 W. NINE MILE RD. SOUTHFIELD, MI 48076

MR. ALVIN GRONOWICZ, PRES. ARGUS PRESSURE GROUTING SERVICES, INC. 3200 E. 10 MILE RD. WARREN, MI 48091

MR. KEN TAYLOR, PRESIDENT APEX ENGINEERING CO. 32333 MALLY DRIVE MADISON HEIGHTS, MI 48071

MR. VURAL UYGUR GIFFELS ASOCIATE INC. 25200 TELEGRAPH RD. P.O. BOX 5025 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48086

MR. JOSEPH ARISTEO, PRES. ARISTE CONSTRUCTION CO. 19429 KINGSVILLE HARPER WOODS, MI 48225

MS. KAREN RIDGEWAY, PRES. APPLIED SCIENCE, INC. 1300 E. LAFAYETTE SUITE M12 DETROIT, MI 48207

*MR. RALPH PIERCE HARLEY ELLINGTON PIERCE YESS ASSOCIATES INC. 26913 NORTHWESTERN HWY. SUITE 200 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48034-5030

MR. BOB MACOMBER, PRES. ATWELL-HICKS., INC. 1241 S. MAPLE ROAD P.O. BOX 2981 ANN ARBOR, MI 48106

*MR. GERALD M. HOLMBERG ASSISTANT MANAGING DIR. OAKLAND COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 31001 LAHSER RD. BIRMINGHAM, MI 48010

* MR. J. EDWARD GENHEIMER ELLIS/NACYAERT/GENHEIMER ASSOCIATES, INC. 3290 W. BIG BEAVER ROAD TROY, MI 48084

MR, HARRY PATEL, DIRECTOR BEI ASSOCIATES, INC. 150 W. JEFFERSON AVENUE DETROIT, MI 48226

* MR. RICHARD F. BEAUBIEN TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK P.O. BOX 824 **BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI 48303-**0824

MR. LOUIS TAMA GIFFELS HOYEM BASSO, INC. 3150 LIVERNOIS AVE. SUITE 300 TROY, MI 48083

MR. SANTOSH BANSAL, PRES. BANSAL & ASSOCIATES., INC. 445 S. LIVERNOIS ROAD #202 ROCHESTER HILLS, MI 48063

MR. KENNETH NEUMANN *MR. CARL N. SCHROEDER KENNETH NEWMAN/JOEL SMITH AND ASSOC. INC. **400 GALLERIA OFFICENTRE** SOUTHFIELD, MI 48034

MR. DONALD L. SHALIBO SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT BARTON-MALOW CO. 27777 FRANKLIN SUITE SOUTHFIELD, MI 48034

CITY ENGINEER CITY OF TROY 500 W. BIG BEAVER RD. TROY. MI 48084

MR. MARK HILDEBRANDT,
PRESIDENT
GILLET ASSOCIATES, INC.
58°CROOKS RD., SUITE 120
The ', MI 48098

GEORGE JEROME, PRES. JEROME & CO., GEO 28312 HAYES ROSEVILLE, MI 48066 * SHARON MADISON, PRES. MADISON MADISON INTER. OF MICHIGAN ENGRS, ARCH. 1420 WASHINGTON BLVD. DETROIT, MI 48226

*MR. THOMAS L. GILMORE,
PRESIDENT
GILMORE, THOMAS L.
28830 W. EIGHT MILE
FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48336

JOE GOUGH JOE GOUGH CONSTRUCTION 16007 W. 8 MILE ROAD DETROIT, MI 48235 KEN MAHNICK, PRESIDENT MAHNICK & ASSOC., INC. K.H. 5700 ORION ROAD ROCHESTER, MI 48064

*RICK HARDING, REG. DIR. GOLDBERG-ZOINO & ASSOC. 38019 SCHOOL CRAFT ROAD LIVONIA, MI 48150 NATHAN JOHNSON, PRES. JOHNSON & ASSOCIATS, INC. 2512 W. GRAND BVLVD. DETROIT, MI 48208

JOE ALKATEEB, PRESIDENT MANCINI, ALKATEEB & ASSOCIATES, INC. 30400 TELEGRAPH ROAD SUITE 486 BIRMINGHAM, MI 48010

HAIM SECHLICK, PRESIDENT CONSULTING, INC. 5 GREENFIELD ROAD SUITE 208 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48076 WILLIAM LEFKOSFSKY, PRESIDENT LBA, INC. 29777 TELEGRAPH ROAD SUITE 2480 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48034 SEYMOUR MANDELL, PRES. MANDELL BILOVUS & ASSOC. 26111 W. 14 MILE ROAD SUITE LL-6 FRANKLIN, MI 48025

RALPH PIERCE, PRESIDENT 26913 NORTHWESTERN HWY. SUITE 200 P.O. BOX 5030 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48086-5030 NATHAN LEVINE, PRES. LEVINE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 100 GALLERIA OFFICENTRE SUITE 129 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48034 BOB COOPER, PRESIDENT MC CLURG & ASSOC., INC. 35 W. HURON RIKER BUILDING-10TH FLOOR PONTIAC, MI 48058

JOSEPH KAPELCAZAK JCK & ASSOCIATES, INC. P.O. BOX 759 NOVI, MI 48050 JOSEPH LAMBARDO, PRES. LOMVARDO & ASSOC., INC. 445 S. LIVERNOIS, SUITE 202 ROCHESTER HILLS, MI 48307 JOHN H. LAMB, PRESIDENT MC DOWELL & ASSOC., INC. 21355 HATCHER AVENUE FERNDALE, MI 48220

L MILLS, PRESIDENT
JARRETT-MILLS-SCHRON &
ASSOCIATES, INC.
35122 MICHIGAN AVE. W.
WAYNE, MI 48184

JAMES MURPHY
MPK ENGINEERS/SURVEYORS
29350 SOUTHFIELD ROAD
SUITE 105
SOUTHFIELD, MI 48076-2020

LAWRENCE MARTIN
MICHIGAN ROAD BUILDERS
ASSOCIATION, INC.
610 OTTAWA
P.O. BOX 48901
LANSING, MI 48901

MR, RICHARD DEMARIA MR. CARL LUCKENBACK MR. GILBERT SILVERMAN DEMARIA BUILDING CO. LUCKENBACK/ZIEGELMAN & HOLTZMAN & SILVERMAN 45500 GRAND RIVER CONSTRUCTION COMPANY PARTNERS INC. NOVI, MI 48374 30833 NORTHWESTERN HWY. 115 W. BROWN ST. FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48334 BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009-6019 MR. JACK AGRAWAL, PRES. MR. JACK HAMBURGER MR. CRAIG SMITH A.B. & ASSOCIATES, INC. PARLIAMENT COMPANY SMITH & SCHUMAN ASSOC. 24001 SOUTHFIELD RD. 30200 TELEGRAPH RD. 1625 WOODWARD AVE. SUITE 209 BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI 48013 BIRMINGHAM, MI 48010 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48075 MR. TOM LANDRY, PRES. A.J. ETKIN CONSTRUCTION CO. MR. DOUGLAS MANIX MR. WAH YEE WAH YEE ASSOCIATES 31440 NORTHWESTERN #150 CAMPBELL-MANIX INC. 34405 W. 12 MILE ROAD 21520 BRIDGE STREET P.O. BOX 9061 FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48331 FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48018 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48034 MR. ROBERT POWELL MR. JOHN MONAHAN MR. MATTHEW JERUE JICKLING LYMAN POWELL EDWARD V. MONOHAN INC. REGIONAL MANAGER ASSOCIATES INC. ABB ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. 21321 KELLY EAST DETROIT, MI 48021 39255 COUNTRY CLUB DR 2900 W. MAPLE ROAD FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48331 TROY, MI 48084 MR. R. MARTIN, PRES. MR. LAWRENCE DAILEY MR. JOHN OLSON ASC SYSTEMS R. E. DAILEY & COMPANY JOHN M. OLSON COMPANY 26401 HARPER AVENUE 2000 TOWN CENTER 26210 HARPER AVENUE ST. CLAIR SHORES, MI 48081 ST. CLAIR SHORES, MI 48081 **SUITE 1600** SOUTHFIELD, MI 48075 MR. FRED AUGH JR. MR. EDGAR E. PARKS, PRES. GEORGE W. AUCH COMPANY ALBERT KHAN ASSOC., INC. MR. KIM YAMASAKI MINORU YAMASAKI ASSOC. 735 S. PADDOCK ST. ALBERT KHAN BLDG. 350 W. BIG BEAVER ROAD PONTIAC, MI 48341 7430 SECOND AVENUE TROY, MI 4800-4100 DETROIT, MI 48202-2798 MR. JOSEPH CLARE MR. ALFRED MCDANIEL, PRES MR. KENT JOHNSON GILBANE BUILDING CO. TMP ASSOCIATES INC. ALFRED ASSOCIATES., IN

35055 W. 12 MILE ROAD

FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48331

17191 JAMES COUZENS

DETROIT, MI 48325

1191 W. SQUARE LAKE RD.

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI 48013

MR. JAMES LATHAM
BLACK & VEATCH ENGI MEERS-ARCHITECTS
6 ENAISSANCE CENTER
SUITE 1240
DETROIT, MI 48243

MR. NATHAN SHAPIRO, PRES. CONSULTING ENG. ASSOC. 16580 WYOMING DETROIT, MI 48221 MR. BOB GAINES, PRES. ENVIRONMENTAL ENG. CORP. 12411 STARK ROAD LIVONIA, MI 48150

MR. DARWIN MCLEOD, PRES. BOLDT, MCLEOD & JOHNSON INC. 1904 POPLAR STREET PORT HURON, MI 48060 MR. TONY VILLA, PRES. CORONA CONSTRUCTION, INC. 32540 SCHOOLCRAFT #120 LIVONIA, MI 48150 MR. CARL CARLSON, PRES. FLINT SURVEYING & ENGINEERING CO. 5370 MILLER ROAD SWARTZ CREEK, MI 48473

MR. ROBERT NEAR, PRES. CTI & ASSOCIATES, INC. 24684 HATHWAY CT. FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48335

*MR. JOHN BARBER, PRES. CUMMINS & BARNARD, INC. 2058 S. STATE STREET ANN ARBOR, MI 48104 MR. GIL MANLY, PRES. GM ENGINEERS & ASSOC. 2185 KEYLON DR. WEST BLOOMFIELD, MI 48033

*N RAYMOND TATGERSON,
PRESIDENT
CAPITAL CONSULTANTS, INC.
1627 LAKE LANSING RD.
LANSING, MI 48912

MR. TOM SITZPATRICK, PRES. DARVAS ASSOCIATES 440 S. MAIN STREET ANN ARBOR, MI 48104

MR. CHUNILAL GALA, PRES. GALA & ASSOCIATES, INC. 31333 SOUTHFIELD RD. BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

MR. DONALD SALKOWSKI, PRESIDENT CHRISTOPHER CONSTRUC-TION COMPANY 8345 LYNCH ROAD DETROIT, MI 48234

MR. JACK DUCKWORTH, PRES. DUCKWORTH & ASSOCIATES 14500 SHELDON RD. PLYMOUTH, MI 48170

MR. PATRICK SMITHBAUER, VICE PRESIDENT 14147 FARMINGTON ROAD LIVONIA, MI 48154

MR. ROBERT UHLER, PRES. CLAYTON ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS & ENG. SERV. 22345 ROETHEL DR. NOVI, MI 48050 MR. PAUL DOUGLASS, PRES. ENG. & TESTING SERVICES 1328 GOLDSMITH PLYMOUTH, MI 48170 MR. RAM MISRA, HEAD OF STRUCTURAL DEPART. 25200 TELEGRAPH ROAD P.O. BOX 5025 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48086-5025

MR. GERALD CLEARY, PRES. CLEARY ENGINEERS, INC. 71 S. SQUIRREL ROAD AUBURN HILLS, MI 48057 MR. ROBERT BRAITHWAITE,
PRESIDENT
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULT.
738 WALNUT BLVD.
P.O. BOX 459
ROCHESTER, MI 48063

* MR. CHARLES BIEGUN, PRES. GIFFELS-WEBSTER ENGI-NEERS, INC. 2871 BOND STREET ROCHESTER HILLS, MI 48309 MR. ISAAC SHEPPARD, PRES. SHEPPARD ENGINEERING, INC 966 LIVERNOIS TROY, MI 48083 MR. TED MARSH, PRESIDENT T.H. MARSH CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 12725 STARK RD. LIVONIA, MI 48150

MR. DAN BROOK
WADE/TRIM ASSOCIATES
25185 GODDARD RD.
P.O. BOX 10
TAYLOR, MI 48180

MR. G.M. SINGHVI SMITH,HENCHMAN,GRYLLS ASSOC. 455 W. FORT ST. DETROIT, MI 48226 MR. JAMES HARLESS, PRES. TECHNA CORPORATION 44808 HELM ST. PLYMOUTH, MI 48170

MR. JOHN TOMEROY WALBAR CONSULTING 16615 HEATHERWOOD MT. CLEMENS, MI 48044

*MS. SHERRI FOUNTAIN, MGR. HUMAN RESOURCES SOIL & MATERIALS ENGINEERS 34400 GLENDALE AVE. LIVONIA, MI 48150 MR. JOHN BANICKI, PRES. TESTING ENGINEERS AND CONSULTANTS, INC. 1333 ROCHESTER RD. P.O. BOX 249 TROY, MI 48099 *MR. RALPH KNOP, PRESIDENT WADE-TRIM/EDMANDS 4488 W. BRISTOL RD. FLINT, MI 48507

*MR. RAMJI PATEL, PRESIDENT SOMAT ENGINEERING, INC. 1420 WASHINGTON BLVD. DETROIT, MI 48226

MR. JIM TOMBLISON, PRES. TOMBLINSON, HARBURN ASSOCIATES 1800 CROOKS RD. TROY, MI 48084 MR. KENNETH WEHNER WEHNER ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION CONS. 6265 TRIPP RD. HOLLY, MI 48442

MR. ROBERT GOODRICH, PRES SPALDING DECKER & ASSOC. 655 W. THIRTEEN MILE RD. MADISON HEIGHTS, MI 48071 MR. PAUL TUCKER, PRES.
TUCKER, YOUNG, JACKSON,
& TULL, INC.
1101 WASHINGTON BLVD.
SUITE 401
DETROIT, MI 48226

MR. BERNARD WHITE, PRES. WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO. 889 W. BALTIMORE DETROIT, MI 48202

MR. JOHN STEVENS, PRES. STEVENS ASSOCIATES, INC. 577 E. LARNED DETROIT, MI 48226 MR. A.T. MCNEILL TURNER CONSTRUCTION CO. 150 W. JEFFERSON SUITE 500 DETROIT, MI 48226 MR. STANLEY KUBIS, PRES. WILLIAMS & WORKS, INC. 18805 WICK RD. SUITE B ALLEN PARK, MI 48101

MR. TOM YASTE, PRESIDENT STRAUB ASSOCIATES 1133 E. MAOLE RD. SUITE 207 TROY, MI 48083 MR. PATRICK MANOR, PRES. URBAN ENGINEERING CO. 6748 ALLEN ROAD ALLEN PARK, MI 48101

MR. SAMUEL WINEMAN, PRES WOLF, WINEMAN ENGINAS 17570 W. TWELVE MILE I SOUTHFIELD, MI 48076 MR. WEI WEN YU, PRESIDENT YU ENGINEERING 300 ENTERPRISE CT. SUITE 200 B BL MFIELD HILLS, MI 48013 MR. JOE CASTELEVATERE CITY OF DEARBORN DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 2951 GREENFIELD DEARBORN, MI 48120 MR. BRIAN PHOTIADES, DIR CITY OF FERNDALE DEPT. OF PUBLIC SERVICES 521 E. CAMBOURNE FERNDALE, MI 48220

MR. JAMES IOCCA, PRESIDENT ZEI INC. 1159 E. MICHIGAN AVE. YPSILANTI, MI 48198 MS. LINDA HAMIL
CITY OF DEARBORN HEIGHTS
DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS
24600 VANBORN RD.
DEARBORN HEIGHTS, MI 48125

MR. JIM SOBETSKI
CITY OF FERNDALE
BUILDING & ENGINEERING
DEPARTMENT
300 E. NINE MILE RD.
FERNDALE, MI 48220

MR. JIM SCOTT
BLOOMFIELD HILLS TWP.
BUILDING DEPARTMENT
4200 TELEGRAPH RD.
P.O. BOX 489
BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MI 48013

MR. MATT MARCHURD CITY OF DEARBORN HEIGHTS BUILDING & ENGINEERING DEPT. 6045 FENTON DEARBORN HEIGHTS, MI 48127 MR. TED LEMKE CITY OF FERNDALE TRAFFIC CONTROL DEPT. 310 E. NINE MILE RD. FERNDALE, MI 48220

*MR. RICHARD SHEPLER, DIR. CITY OF BERKLEY DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 3: COOLIDGE HWY. BERKLEY, MI 48072

MR. FREDERICK JANECZKO CITY OF DETROIT WATER & SEWERAGE DEPT. 735 RANDOLPH DETROIT, MI 48226

MR. FRED WATTS CITY OF FLINT DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 1101 S. SAGINAW FLINT, MI 48502

MR. BILL KILLEEN, ENGINEER CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 151 MARTIN ST. P.O. BOX 3001 BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009 MR. SAMUEL LAWSON CITY OF DETROIT TRANSPORTATION DEPT. 1301 E. WARREN DETROIT, MI 48207 MR. JAMES ELLISON, DIR. CITY GROSSE POINTE PARK DEPT. OF PUBLIC SERVICES 15115 E. JEFFERSON GROSSE POINTE PARK, MI 48230

MR. MIDDLE WOOD, DIR. CITY OF BIRMINGHAM DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 851 S. ETON BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009 MR. CLYDE HOPKINS, DIR. CITY OF DETROIT CITY ENGINEERING DEPT. 65 CADILLAC SQUARE CADILLAC TOWER 9TH FLOOR DETROIT, MI 48226 ATTN: MANAGER CITYGROSSE POINTE SHORES DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 795 LAKE SHORE RD. GROSSE POINTE SHORES, MI 48236

MR. ELWART DEAN
CITY OF DEARBORN
E INEERING, BUILDING,
SAFETY DEPARTMENT
4500 MAPLE
DEARBORN, MI 48126

MR. CREIGHTON LEDERER CITY OF DETROIT BUILDING & SAFETY DEPT. 2 WOODWARD AVE. DETROIT, MI 48226

The parallel the fire

MR. TOM WHITCHER, DIR. CITY GROSSE POINTE WOODS DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 1200 PARKWAY AVE. GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI

48236

MR. THOMAS TOMASZEWSKI CITY OF HAMTRAMCK 9600 BUFFALO HAM HAMTRAMCK, MI 48212 MR. WILLIAM MARSHALL CITY OF INKSTER BUILDING DEPARTMENT 2121 INKSTER ROAD INKSTER, MI 48071 MR. RICHARD PENMAN CITY OF WEST BLOOMFIELD WATER & SEWER DEPT. 2400 HAGGERTY RD P.O. BOX 240100 WEST BLOOMFIELD, MI 48

MR. ROBERT SEAWINSKI, SUPERINTENDENT CITY OF HARPER WOODS 19600 E. EIGHT MILE RD. HARPER WOODS, MI 48224

MS. MARGIE ROSE, DIRECTOR CITY OF INKSTER DEPT. OF PUBLIC SERVICES 26900 PRINCETON INKSTER, MI 48141 MR. EDWARD MOREY GENESSEE COUNTY ROAD COMMITTION 211 W. OAKLEY FLINT, MI 48503

MR. JERRY OWCZARZAK CITY OF HARPER WOODS 19617 HARPER ROAD HARPER WOODS, MI 48225 MR. JACK CARTER CITY OF MADISON HEIGHTS DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 801 AJAX DRIVE MADISON HEIGHTS, MI 48071

MR. WALLACE BENZIE
GENESSEE COUNTY DRAIN
COMMISSIONER
G 4610 BEECHER ROAD
FLINT, MI 48532

MR. ALBERT SADOW CITY OF HAZEL PARK DEPART. OF PUBLIC WORKS 24211 COZENS HAZEL PARK, MI 48030

MR. ROBERT SEIFERT CITY OF OAK PARK DEPART. OF PUBLIC WORKS 13600 OAK PARK BLVD. OAK PARK. MI 48327 MR. THOMAS WELSH
MACOMB COUNTY
OFFICE OF PUBLIC WORKS
P.O. BOX 806
MT. CLEMENS, MI 48046

MR. JEROME BIVINS CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK WATER & SEWAGE DEPT. 30 GERALD HIGHLAND PARK, MI 48203 * MR. DICK COLE CITY OF ROYAL OAK DEPART. OF PUBLIC WORKS 1600 N. CAMPBELL ROYAL OAK, MI 48067

MS. MARY DANER
MACOMB COUNTY
ROAD COMMISSION
115 S. GROESBECK HWY.
MT. CLEMENS, MI 48043-2189

MR. JIMMY MARCLENSON CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK DEPART. OF PUBLIC WORKS 16480 WOODWARD AVE. HIGHLAND PARK, MI 48203 * MR. THOMAS VUKONICH CITY OF SOUTHFIELD DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS 2600 EVERGREEN ROAD P.O. BOX 2055 SOUTHFIELD, MI 48037

MR. MILTON HANDORS
OAKLAND COUNTY
DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS
1 PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE
WATERFORD, MI 48328

MR. BILL BROWN, DIRECTOR CITY OF HUNTINGTON WOODS DEPART. OF PUBLIC WORKS 12795 W. 11 MILE RD. HUNTINGTON WOODS, MI 48070 MR. RUSS KRITES CITY OF WEST BLOOMFIELD 4550 WALNUT ROAD P.O. BOX 40100 WEST BLOOMFIELD, MI 48324

MR. NEAL GEAHRING U.S. ARMY CORPS OF EN 477 MICHIGAN AVENUE DETROIT, MI 48226 AR. H. T. WANG
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF
ENGINEERS, DETROIT DIST.
BOX 1027
DETPOT, MI 48231-1027

MR. DAN MYRES, DIRECTOR WASHTENAW COUNTY DEPART. OF PUBLIC WORKS P.O. BOX 8645 ANN ARBOR, MI 48107-8645

MR. RONALD WILSHAW
J.S. ARMY CORPS OF
ENGINEERS, DETROIT DIST.
BOX 1027
DETROIT, MI 48231-1027

MR. RUSSELL GRONEVELT WAYNE COUNTY OFFICE OF PUBLIC SERVICES 415 CLIFFORD DETROIT, MI 48226

Salakara Wangara Ang Ang

MR. JOHN GRANDSTROM U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, DETROIT DIST. BOX 1027 DETROIT, MI 48231-1027

MR. DALE MONTEITHE
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF
ENGINEERS, DETROIT DIST.
BO)27
DETROIT, MI 48231-1027

MS. JANIS A. BOBRIN
WASHTENAW COUNTY
DRAIN COMMISSIONERS OFF.
P.O. BOX 8645
ANN ARBOR, MI 48107-8645

MS. YVETTE D. WARE WASHTENAW COUNTY 555 NORTHZEEB ROAD P.O. BOX 1528 ANN ARBOR, MI 48106

MR. BARRY JOHNSON
W. ITENAW COUNTY
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
BUREAU
2355 W. STADIUM BLVD.
ANN ARBOR, MI 48107-8645

REFERENCES

- Atkinson, P.H. "Adult Learning and the Engineer", Chemical Engineering, 85 (September 1989), pp. 14-19.
- Brown, J.S. "Training the Waste Watchers". Civil Engineering, 59 (August 1989), pp. 69-71.
- Child, Charles. "Growing Engineer Shortage Threatens Local Economy". Crain's Detroit Business, December 18, 1989, p.21.
- Cole, K.C. "Science Under Scrutiny", The New York Times, January 7, 1990, pp. 18-19.
- "Construction Activity to Grow, Says Survey", Highway and Heavy Construction, March 1990, p. 18.
- "Construction Economics". Engineering News Record, January 25, 1990, pp. 34-41.
- "Detroit Area's Largest Architectural Firms". <u>Crain's Detroit</u>
 <u>Business</u>, December 25, 1989, p. 43.
- Donajkowski, Jim. "College Offers Concrete Technical Training", Concrete Construction, 33 (May 1988), pp.515-16.
- Elder, Janet, "Hands On", The New York Times, January 7, 1990, p. 20.
- "Engineering Employment Booming", <u>Civil Engineering</u>, 59 (May 1989), p. 19.
- "Fifteen Leading General Contractors in Southeast Michigan", Crain's Detroit Business, December 25, 1989, p. 44.
- Foderaro, Lisa. "High Hopes", The New York Times. January 7, 1990, p. 21.
- "Growing Shortage of Engineers Worries Manufacturers", <u>Detroit</u>
 <u>Free Press</u>, February 19, 1990, p. 3E.
- Hannan, Roger. "Construction Economics: Lower Rates Pumps Up Housing But Not Other Markets", <u>Engineering News Record</u>, January 25, 1990, pp.34-41.
- Hannan, Roger. "Road and Bridge Market Holding", Engineering News Record, January 25, 1990, pp. 41-43.
- Hendrickson, Chris and Tung, Au. "Construction at Crossroads", Civil Engineering, December 1989, p. 6.

- Ichniowski, Tom. "Transportation", Engineering News Special Report, January 25, 1990, pp. 58-67.
- Jacobs, J. "Training the Workforce of the Future", <u>Technology</u>
 <u>Review</u>, 92 (August/September 1989), pp. 66-72.
- Kraft, Walter. "Engineering Personnel Who Will Be There To Meet The Challenge?", Institute of Transportation Engineers

 Journal, April 1990, pp. 43-45.
- Merwin, Donald P. "Finding Solutions in the 90's: Funding Manpower Problems", Highway and Heavy Construction. January 1990, pp. 28-32.
- Michigan Occupational Information Systems, Oakland Community College
- Reinhold, Robert. "Losing the Race", The New York Times. January 7,1990, p. 22.
- "Road, Bridge Markets Holding Up", Engineering News Record, December 21, 1989, pp. 41-43.
- Sims, Calvin. "The Overlooked", The New York Times, January 7, 1990, p. 23.
- "Transportation", Engineering News Record, January 25, 1990, pp. 58-67.
- Wilkerson, Isabel. "Class for Gifted Requires More Than Brains", The New York Times, February 21, 1990, pp. 1-8.